
 
 
 

 

 

Despatched: 03.09.13 

 

HEALTH LIAISON BOARD  

11 September 2013 at 12.30 pm 

Conference Room, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks 
 

AGENDA 

 
Membership: 

 
Chairman: Cllr. Mrs. Cook  Vice-Chairman: Cllr. Davison 

Cllrs. Mrs. Bosley, Brookbank, Mrs. George and Searles 

 

 
 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Pages Contact 

1. Declarations of Interest    

 Any interests not already registered. 

 

  

2. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4)  

 Minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2013. 

 

  

3. Action from the last meeting of the Board  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
 

 
4. Updates from Members  (Pages 7 - 38) 

 
 

 
5. Children Centres Consultation  (Pages 39 - 88) 

 
Alan Whiting 

Tel: 07132 

227446 
6. Local Children's Trust Board arrangements   

 
Alan Whiting 

Tel: 07132 

227446 

 Verbal update 

 

  

7. Dementia Friendly Communities Update   

 
Hayley Brooks 

Tel: 01732 

227272 

 Verbal update 

 

  

8. Mind The Gap - District Level Health Inequalities 

Plan  

 

 
Hayley Brooks 

Tel: 01732 

227272 

 Verbal update 

 

  

9. Work Plan  (Pages 89 - 90) 

 
 

10. Date of next meeting    



 

 

 

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to obtain 

factual information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire of the appropriate  

Contact Officer named on a report prior to the day of the meeting. 

 

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in another format 

please do not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as set out below. 

 

For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact: 

 

The Democratic Services Team (01732 227241) 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

HEALTH LIAISON BOARD 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2013 commencing at 12.30 pm 

 
 

Present: Cllr. Mrs. Cook (Chairman)  
  

 Cllrs. Mrs. George and Searles 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs. Mrs. Bosley, Brookbank and 

Davison 
 

 Cllrs. Mrs. Sargeant was also present. 

 
 

 

1. Declarations of Interest  

 
Cllr Searles declared that he was a Governor of Darenth Valley NHS Trust.   
 

Change of order of items 
 
With the agreement of the Chairman it was decided that the order of the agenda would 

be changed.  
 

2. Terms of Reference  

 
The Members of the Board agreed that they were happy with the Terms of Reference. 

 

3. Links with Economic and Community Development Advisory Committee  

 
The minutes from the Health Liaison Board would go to the Economic and Community 
Development Advisory Committee. If further discussions were necessary on specific 

topics these would be referred to the Committee.  
  

4. Development of Work Plan  

 
Members of the Health Liaison discussed the topics they would look at over the next 
year. The Chairman suggested that, in addition to its liaison role, the Board look at the 
health priorities in the Community Plan.  It was also thought that Dementia should be a 

key priority.  The Head of Community Development said that dementia was also a key 
County priority. Projects were being developed. Looking at Dementia and Alzheimer’s 
would fit in with the Community Plan.  

 
Autism and Asperger Syndrome was also discussed as a topic for the group to look into. 

This was a topic that would be covered under Barriers to Learning in the Community Plan.  
 
The Local Children’s Trust Boards had been disbanded by the County Council. Local 

organisations hoped that a partnership looking at children’s issues would carry on. The 
County Council had suggested that former Local Children’s Trust Board matters should 
now be dealt with by Health and Wellbeing Boards.  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Health Liaison Board - 11 July 2013 

2 

 

 
There was currently a consultation regarding the future of Children’s Centres across the 

county which would finish in October 2013. This would need to be responded to and the 
Head of Community Development said that Officers would consult all Members in order 

to draft a Council response as Children’s Centres were widely regarded a key local 
services.  
 

The Health, Leisure and Tourism Manager understood from the Manager of the 
Children’s Trust in Edenbridge that there were concerns that it was seen as a Satellite 
Centre and not a hub. It was a vital facility as Edenbridge was isolated. A response to the 

consultation was being addressed at a local level.  
  

A presentation on dementia would be arranged for a future Health Liaison Board 
meeting. Members asked that Carers First also be invited. 
 

The Health, Leisure and Tourism Manager informed the Board that there would be an 
event on 9 August in Swanley. It would be for the Voluntary Sector, carers and sufferers 
of Dementia to take part to identify gaps and focus for a new pilot scheme called 

‘Dementia Friendly Communities’.  This was a county-wide scheme being piloted in 
Swanley.  Members suggested that it should also reach more rural areas around Swanley 

and that the Housing Associations should be included.  
 
Feedback from the workshop would be given to the Board at its next meeting as this 

would be a good starting place for the Board to identify a focus.  
 

5. Updates from Members  

 
Cllr Searles gave an update from the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley (DGS) Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCG). At the next meeting three priorities would be identified to 
take forward. There would be more to report after this.  

 
Cllr Searles also reported that Monitor had asked that the merger between Dartford, 
Gravesham and Medway be put on hold. In order for mortality rates in Medway to be 

investigated. Consideration was being given to whether Darenth Valley Hospital could 
merge with South London NHS Healthcare Trust rather than Medway.  
 

There had been discussions regarding the new 111 emergency telephone number.  A 
general comment presently was that it was not working efficiently and that people were 

not using it. Hospitals were more open about the rising costs and these were now being 
shared with the public. Patients were being encouraged to see their Doctor rather than 
go to A&E due to the increased costs associated with hospital admission. 

 
Dementia cafés were held once a month in Swanley and Sevenoaks and were well 
supported. There were pilot Dementia buddy schemes running in other areas. 

 

6. The District Council's contribution to the Health Agenda  

 
The Health, Leisure & Tourism Manager gave a presentation on the District Council’s 
contribution to Health. The presentation can be found at: 

http://cds.sevenoaks.gov.uk/documents/s12222/HLB%20District%20Action%20on%20
Health%20presentation%20110713.pdf 

Agenda Item 2

Page 2



Health Liaison Board - 11 July 2013 

3 

 

 
(Cllr Searles left the meeting at 1:15pm) 

 
The Chairman of the Board thanked the Health, Leisure and Tourism Manager for the 

presentation and requested that a copy be given to the Members who sent their 
apologies and the Portfolio Holder for Economic and Community Development.  
 

Action 1: That the presentation be circulated to the other Members of the Board 

and the Portfolio Holder.  

 

It was also recommended that the presentation also be given at Economic and 
Community Development Advisory Committee.  

 
A press release and leaflet was tabled regarding the new provider for Patient Transport 
Services. It was agreed that it would be helpful to monitor this service.  

 
To date there had not been any confirmed Terms of Reference or Delegated Powers from 
the County Board for the Health and Wellbeing Boards.  

 
It was agreed that the next meeting of the Health Liaison Board would be on 11 

September at 12.30pm 
  
 

 
 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 1.27 PM 

 
 

 
 

CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 2

Page 3



Health Liaison Board - 11 July 2013 

4 

 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 4



ACTIONS FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 11.07.13 

Action Description Status and last updated  Contact Officer 

ACTION 1 
That the presentation be circulated to the other 

Members of the Board and the Portfolio Holder. 
The presentation was circulated within the 

minutes. 

Hayley Brooks  

 

A
genda Item

 3

P
age 5



P
age 6

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Page 7



Agenda Item 4

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

Page 9



Agenda Item 4

Page 10



Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Agenda Item 4

Page 12



Agenda Item 4

Page 13



Agenda Item 4

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

Page 15



Agenda Item 4

Page 16



Agenda Item 4

Page 17



Agenda Item 4

Page 18



Agenda Item 4

Page 19



Agenda Item 4

Page 20



Agenda Item 4

Page 21



Agenda Item 4

Page 22



Agenda Item 4

Page 23



Agenda Item 4

Page 24



Agenda Item 4

Page 25



Agenda Item 4

Page 26



Agenda Item 4

Page 27



Agenda Item 4

Page 28



Agenda Item 4

Page 29



Agenda Item 4

Page 30



Agenda Item 4

Page 31



Agenda Item 4

Page 32



Agenda Item 4

Page 33



Agenda Item 4

Page 34



Agenda Item 4

Page 35



Agenda Item 4

Page 36



Agenda Item 4

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres

Children’s Centres
in Kent

Shaping the future of

Children’s Centres Consultation Document (July 2013)

Agenda Item 5

Page 39



22

Kent County Council

Foreword  

Children’s Centres play a significant role in providing effective early childhood services for families 

and young children, particularly those who are recognised as being in most need of help and 

support. They provide an ideal means of bringing together services such as health visiting, midwifery, 

employment services and adult learning into one place, sometimes alongside child care and more 

targeted services for children and families in need of them.

Kent County Council is committed to ensuring that there continues to be quality provision for young 

children and their families that will improve:

• The readiness of children for school

• Support for parents and their ability to meet their responsibilities

• Parents’ opportunity to develop personal skills, education and ability to get work

• The development of healthy lifestyles for children

• Parents’ ability to keep their children safe, including when online

• Children’s chances of reaching their full potential and reduce inequality in their health and 

development.

The proposals outlined in this document, if implemented, will enable children and families to continue 

to access a range of advice and support services through Kent’s extensive Children’s Centre network. 

The expanding health visitor workforce, serving the county’s children and families, will be supported 

by early years professionals and social workers when needed.

However, it is also important we achieve all of these objectives in the most efficient way possible and 

make maximum use of those buildings and facilities which are well used by families. In the current 

economic climate, it is vital that the Council sets out a model which is sustainable for the long-term 

future. These proposals set out how resources can be more focused on actual services for children and 

less on buildings and other overheads. They will deliver savings of at least £1.5m whilst ensuring wide 

coverage across the county and continued access to a nearby service for those who need it most.

We believe that focusing our resources, working more closely with health and delivering services 

where they are most needed, will maximise what our excellent Children’s Centres can achieve.

We would very much like to know what you think of this proposal. The consultation will be running 

until 4 October. If you want to contribute to the consultation, have any queries, want further 

information or have alternative suggestions, please do get in touch.

Jenny Whittle Andrew Ireland

Cabinet Member for  Corporate Director for 

Children’s Services Families and Social Care

www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres

cc.consultation@kent.gov.uk

Agenda Item 5

Page 40



33

Children’s Centres

What is a Children’s Centre?

A Children’s Centre is a place or a group of places where parents with children under 5 years old can 

access early support services. These services may be provided at the Centre, or advice and assistance 

may be given to find services somewhere else.

Early support services include:

• Nursery provision

• Social services functions for young children, parents and expectant parents

• Health services for young children, parents and expectant parents

• Training and employment services to assist parents or expectant parents

• Information and advice services for parents and expectant parents.

There are currently 97 Children’s Centres in Kent (excluding Medway).

Kent’s vision for its Children’s Centres

Children’s Centres deliver high quality services meaning every child gets the healthiest start in life and 

is ready for school.  Children’s Centres meet the needs of the most vulnerable children and their fami-

lies at the earliest opportunity, working together with other professionals to deliver easy access to the 

services when and where they are needed. They also work with pre-school children and their primary 

aged siblings to make sure families get the best all-round help.

Why are we consulting? 

• Public funding for Children’s Centres is reducing and we need to make sure that the available money 

can be focused more on actual services for children and their families and less on running buildings 

and other overhead costs. 

• We need to change the way we work so that we can still meet the needs of our children and their 

families, particularly those who need our support most.  

We have reviewed the Children’s Centre Programme in Kent and have developed a proposal  

which aims to:

• Deliver savings of at least £1.5 million

• Protect services which improve health, education and social care

• Continue to offer parents and expectant parents a choice about which Centre they use

• Ensure we give support to those children and families who need it most 

• Improve co-ordination and access to a range of services for families with children aged 0-11 where 

at least one child in the family is under 5 years old. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 41



44

Kent County Council

44

What has been considered in putting our proposal together?  

• The need to save money whilst protecting current and future services

• The differences across Kent and the fact that services need to reflect the communities they serve, 

particularly those who need our support most

• The ways we can improve access to specialist services locally

• How Children’s Centres are currently accessed and used. Some Children’s Centres are more popular 

than others, the majority of families use more than one Centre, and most families do not use Centres 

after 3pm

• The different ways services are and could be run in the community

• What the law says we must do.

What information have we used?

• Information collected about attendance at and usage of Children’s Centres for one year

• Analysis of children’s and families’ needs

• Children’s Centres in Kent have undertaken two Countywide Parental Satisfaction Surveys

• Local knowledge and parent and carer feedback

• Compliments and complaints

• Local engagement workshops held in every District in Kent in February 2013

• Equality Impact Assessments.

Further information is available at www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres

What are we consulting on?

We are consulting on one proposal which includes:

1. Reducing the number of Children’s Centres

2. Linking Children’s Centres to reduce management and administrative costs

3. Reducing hours at some Children’s Centres.

 

The following pages explain these proposals in more detail and show what they mean for different 

parts of Kent.

Agenda Item 5

Page 42



55

Children’s Centres

55

1. To reduce the number of Children’s Centres  

We want to create an affordable Children’s Centre programme in Kent that continues to deliver 

good quality services. To do this we propose to reduce the number of Children’s Centre buildings, 

but we will consider increasing our off site delivery in some areas. 

We propose to close the following Children’s Centres:

District Children’s Centre See 

Page

Ashford
Cherry Blossom (Wye)

Squirrel Lodge (Furley Park)

9

Canterbury

Apple Tree (Chartham)

Briary

Little Bees (Littlebourne)

Swalecliffe 

Tina Rintoul (Hersden)

12

Dartford Maypole 15

Dover

The Buttercup (St. Radigund’s) and The Daisy (Tower Hamlets)  

to merge and relocate to an existing building in Dover town centre

Primrose (North Deal)

9

Gravesham
Daisy Chains (Meopham) 

Little Painters (Painters Ash)

15

Maidstone
Loose 

Marden

18

Sevenoaks
Dunton Green 

Merry-Go Round (Westerham)

18

Shepway

New Romney 

The Village (Folkestone) or Folkestone (currently Folkestone Early 

Years)

9

Swale
St. Mary’s (Faversham) 

Woodgrove (Sittingbourne)

12

Thanet No Centre closures 12

Tonbridge & Malling
Hadlow/East Peckham 

Larkfield

18

Tunbridge Wells Pembury 18

Some Children’s Centres share their buildings with pre-schools or nurseries. These services are not 

provided by the Children’s Centre directly and Children’s Centres do not pay for them.  Nurseries and 

pre-schools are excluded from this proposal.

Agenda Item 5

Page 43



66

Kent County Council

2. Linking Children’s Centres to reduce management and administrative costs  

We want to ensure that the majority of the money is used to provide services. We will do this 

through reducing management and administrative costs by linking Centres.

 We have identified 16 Lead Centres which are generally bigger buildings in communities where 

larger numbers of children and families need early support services.  The Lead Centre, a “Children’s 

Centre Plus”, will co-ordinate services across the linked Centres including working with local 

Schools, GPs, Health Visitors, Childminders, Nurseries, Social Services, Health Specialists, Job Centre 

Plus and the Voluntary Sector to improve access to services. They may also deliver more support 

than they do now.  

Proposed future operating model (the number of linked Centres may vary)

Children’s  

Centre 

Plus

Linked  

Children’s  

Centre

Linked  

Children’s  

Centre

Linked  

Children’s  

Centre

Linked  

Children’s  

Centre

Linked  

Children’s  

Centre

Agenda Item 5

Page 44



77

Children’s Centres

3. To reduce hours at some Children’s Centres  

We know that many Children’s Centres have fewer users at certain times of the day. We are 

proposing to reduce hours at 13 Centres across the County to 18 hours a week (opening hours are 

to be agreed locally). 

District Reduced Hours See 
page

Dartford Temple Hill 13

Dover Samphire (Aycliffe) 7

Sevenoaks West Kingsdown 13

Shepway

Dymchurch

Hawkinge and Rural

Hythe Bay

Lydd’le Stars (Lydd)

7

Swale
Beaches (Warden/Leysdown)

Lilypad (Minster)

10

Thanet

Birchington

Callis Grange

Garlinge

10

Tunbridge Wells Harmony (Rusthall) 16

What does this proposal mean?

• In some communities, Centres will close or Centre opening hours will be reduced

• Parents will still be able to access Children’s Centre services in other Centres and we will continue to 

bring services to you

• Children’s Centres will also support families where at least one child is under 5 years old to access 

services for their other children aged 5 -11

• All Centres will work together to deliver services.  Some Children’s Centres (a “Children’s Centre Plus”) 

may deliver more support than they do now

• The closure of a Children’s Centre does not mean the closure of the nursery or pre-school

• Some Children’s Centre services may not be delivered directly by Kent County Council. 

How much will this proposal save?   

This proposal will save at least £1.5 million. These savings will be from a reduction in administration, 

management and accommodation costs.

How can I get involved and have my say?

We are committed to keeping you involved and are keen to listen to your views.  

Please let us know what you think by visiting the website at www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres 

and completing the online consultation questionnaire.

Alternatively, you can complete the consultation questionnaire on Page 21.  Please return it to Freepost 

RTER-RZXC-HCJH Children’s Centres, Facts International, Ashford, TN24 8FL or drop it into any  

Children’s Centre.  

Agenda Item 5

Page 45



88

Kent County Council

If you are completing the consultation questionnaire in a professional capacity (i.e. in connection 

with your job), please complete the online questionnaire at www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres. 

Alternatively, any Children’s Centre can provide you with a paper version of the correct questionnaire.

Contact us:

Email - cc.consultation@kent.gov.uk

Phone – 0300 333 5540

Post – Freepost RTER-RZXC-HCJH, Children’s Centres, Facts International, Ashford, TN24 8FL

What happens next?

We will be consulting on these proposals until 4th October 2013 at 5pm. 

Once the consultation finishes we promise to tell you the outcomes of the consultation at  

www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres.  Feedback information will also be available at your local Children’s 

Centre.  A decision is expected in December 2013.

Further information is available at www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres

Agenda Item 5

Page 46



99

Children’s Centres

Ashford, Dover and Shepway
What does this mean for Ashford, Dover and Shepway?

District Children’s Centre Plus Linked Children’s Centre Closure

Ashford The Willow

Ray Allen 

Sure Steps

Little Explorers 

Bluebells 

Waterside 

Cherry Blossom 

Squirrel Lodge 

Dover

Dover Town Centre

(relocation of The Daisy and 

The Buttercup)

Buckland and Whitfield 

The Sunflower

Aylesham (currently Snowdrop*) 

Blossom 

Samphire 

Primrose 

The Daisy 

The Buttercup 

Shepway

The Village 

or 

Folkestone (currently 

Folkestone Early Years*)

Caterpillars 

Hythe Bay  (currently Hythe Bay School*) 

Dymchurch 

Hawkinge and Rural 

Lydd’le Stars 

The Village

or

Folkestone (currently 

Folkestone Early Years*)

New Romney

It is proposed that Centres shown in bold become part time.

* Services currently delivered within these Centres may be delivered by another organisation.  Legally, Kent County Council  

is required to allow other organisations to bid to run these services. This means that the organisation that provides services 

at these Centres may change.  In some cases the services may relocate to a different building, but the building will be 

within the same local area.

Why are we proposing to close these Centres?

• Cherry Blossom – Cherry Blossom Children’s Centre currently signposts to services. It does not 

deliver services at the Children’s Centre which is at Wye School.  The Centre serves an area where 

smaller numbers of children and families need early support services. The majority of Centre users 

also attend another Children’s Centre. Cherry Blossom Children’s Centre is near Wye Library. The 

library will be used to support families to access services. 

• Squirrel Lodge – Squirrel Lodge Children’s Centre is at Furley Park Primary School. Evidence suggests 

that the Centre currently signposts a large number of its users to other Centres. The Centre serves 

an area where smaller numbers of children and families need early support services. The majority of 

Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre.   

• Primrose – Primrose Children’s Centre is at Sandown School. Primrose Children’s Centre serves an 

area where smaller numbers of children and families need early support services.  The majority of 

Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre. Primrose Children’s Centre is near Deal Library, 

which registers births, and will be used to support families to access more services.

• The Daisy and The Buttercup – It is proposed that The Daisy Children’s Centre and The Buttercup 

Children’s Centre are merged and relocated to an existing building in Dover Town Centre.  We 

believe that this will improve access to the Centres and increase opportunities for partnership 

working.  The majority of users at both Centres also attend another Children’s Centre.

Agenda Item 5

Page 47



1010

Kent County Council

• The Village or Folkestone Early Years Centre - The Village Children’s Centre is approximately 950 

metres from Folkestone Early Years Children’s Centre. Children’s Centre closures are unavoidable and 

we believe it makes sense to close one of these two Centres. Both Centres have similar numbers 

of users and a number already attend both Centres. If one of these buildings is chosen for closure,  

services will continue to be delivered in the remaining building.

This proposal does not a"ect the pre-school at The Village Children’s Centre which is not delivered by 

the Children’s Centre. However depending on the building chosen for closure there may be an impact 

on nursery provision at Folkestone Early Years Children’s Centre.

• New Romney – New Romney Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children 

and families need early support services. The majority of users attend another Children’s Centre. New 

Romney Children’s Centre is near New Romney Library. The library will be used to support families to 

access services.

Why are we proposing to make these Centres part time?

• Shepway Children’s Centres - Due to the rural locations of some Centres, the majority of users only 

access their local Centre.  With this in mind, and the fact that we cannot afford the current level of 

service we propose that the following Centres open part time. 

• Hythe Bay (Hythe Library is nearby and will be used to support families to access services when 

the Children’s Centre is closed)

• Dymchurch 

• Hawkinge and Rural 

• Lydd’le Stars (Lydd Library is nearby and will be used to support families to access services when 

the Children’s Centre is closed.)

• Caterpillars (Morehall) - Serves an area where larger numbers of children and families need early 

support services and will remain full time.

 

• Samphire – Samphire Children’s Centre is at Aycliffe Primary School. Samphire Children’s Centre 

does not serve one of the areas identified as having larger numbers of children and families needing 

early support services.  The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre. 

This proposal does not a"ect the nursery provision at the Children’s Centre which is not delivered by 

Kent County Council. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 48



1111

Children’s Centres
Agenda Item 5

Page 49



1212

Kent County Council

Canterbury, Swale and Thanet
What does this mean for Canterbury, Swale and Thanet?

District Children’s Centre Plus Linked Children’s Centre Closure

Canterbury
Canterbury City Centre 

(currently Riverside*)

The Poppy 

Joy Lane

Little Hands 

Apple Tree 

Briary

Little Bees 

Swalecliffe

Tina Rintoul 

Swale

Milton Court

Bysing Wood (management linked to  

Canterbury City Centre Children’s Centre)

Grove Park

Murston
St. Mary’s 

Woodgrove

Sheerness (currently 

Seashells*)

Ladybird 

Beaches 

Lilypad 

Thanet

Priory

Newington

Newlands

Birchington

No Closures

Six Bells

Dane Valley (currently Millmead*)

Garlinge

Callis Grange

Cliftonville

It is proposed that Centres shown in bold become part time.

* Services currently delivered within these Centres maybe delivered by another organisation. Legally, Kent County Council 

is required to allow other organisations to bid to run these services. This means that the organisation which provides 

services at these Centres may change.  In some cases the services may relocate to a different building, but the building will 

be within the same local area

Why are we proposing to close these Centres?

• Apple Tree – Apple Tree Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and 

families need early support services. The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s 

Centre.

• Briary – Briary Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and families need 

early support services.  The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre.

• Little Bees – Evidence suggests that Little Bees Children’s Centre currently signposts a large number 

of its users to other Centres. The Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and 

families need early support services.  The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s 

Centre. 

• Swalecli"e - Swalecliffe Children’s Centre is at Swalecliffe Community Primary School and serves an 

area where smaller numbers of children and families need early support services.  The majority of 

Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre. 

This proposal does not a"ect the pre-school provision at Swalecli"e Children’s Centre which is not 

delivered by Kent County Council.

Agenda Item 5

Page 50



1313

Children’s Centres

• Tina Rintoul – Tina Rintoul Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and 

families need early support services.  Tina Rintoul is the least used Centre in the Canterbury district.   

• St. Mary’s – St. Mary’s Children’s Centre is at St. Mary’s of Charity CE Primary School and does not 

serve one of the areas identified as having larger numbers of children and families needing early 

support services.  Many Centre users also attend Bysing Wood Children’s Centre. St. Mary’s Children’s 

Centre is near Faversham Library, which registers births, and will be used to support families to 

access more services.

• Woodgrove - Woodgrove Children’s Centre does not serve one of the areas identified as having 

larger numbers of children and families needing early support services.  The majority of Centre users 

also attend one of the other three Children’s Centres in Sittingbourne. Woodgrove Children’s Centre 

is near Sittingbourne Library, which registers births, and will be used to support families to access 

more services.

This proposal does not a"ect the nursery provision at the Children’s Centre which is not  

delivered by Kent County Council.

Why are we proposing to make these Centres part time?

• Swale Children’s Centres – Lilypad and Beaches operate as one Children’s Centre.  Due to there rural 

location, the Centres serve areas where smaller numbers of children and families need early support 

services.  The majority of Lilypad and Beaches users do not access other Centres in Kent.  Part time 

hours at both will ensure that one of the two sites is open.  Lilypad Children’s Centre is near Minster-

in-Sheppey Library.  The library will be used to support families to access services.

• Thanet Children’s Centres – Centres serve areas where more children and families need early 

support services.  With this in mind, and the fact that we cannot afford the current level of service, 

we propose that the following Centres open part time. 

• Birchington (Birchington Library is nearby and will be used to support families to access services 

when the Children’s Centre is closed)

• Garlinge

• Callis Grange

These Centres serve areas where smaller numbers of children and families need early support services, 

compared to other areas in Thanet. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 51



1414

Kent County Council
Agenda Item 5

Page 52



1515

Children’s Centres

Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley
What does this mean for Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley?

District Children’s Centre Plus Linked Children’s Centre Closure

Dartford Brent

Knockhall

Swanscombe

Oakfield

Temple Hill

Greenlands at Darenth (management 

linked to Swanley Children’s Centre)

Maypole

Gravesham Little Pebbles 

Kings Farm

Little Gems 

Riverside

Bright Futures 

Daisy Chains 

Little Painters 

Swanley Swanley
New Ash Green

West Kingdown
No Closures

It is proposed that Centres shown in bold become part time.

Information for Sevenoaks is on Page 18.

Why are we proposing to close these Centres?

• Maypole – Maypole Children’s Centre is at Maypole Primary School and does not serve one of the 

areas identified as having larger numbers of children and families needing early support services.  

Many Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre. Very few Centre users attend Maypole 

regularly.  Maypole Children’s Centre is near Summerhouse Drive library.  The library will be used to 

support families to access services.

• Daisy Chains – Daisy Chains Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and 

families need early support services.  Most services run by Daisy Chains are delivered off site (and 

will not be affected under this proposal).

• Little Painters – Little Painters Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children 

and families need early support services.  Evidence suggests that the Centre currently signposts 

a large number of its users to other Centres .The majority of Centre users also attend another 

Children’s Centre.  Little Painters currently opens part time.  Most services run by Little Painters are 

delivered off site (and will not be affected under this proposal).

Agenda Item 5

Page 53



1616

Kent County Council

Why are we proposing to make these Centres part time?

• Temple Hill – We believe that the Children’s Centre at Temple Hill is not in the best place to 

encourage families to attend.  However, as the Centre serves an area where larger numbers of 

children and families need early support services, we propose to keep the Centre open with part 

time hours.  This will allow us to increase the number of hours we can deliver services off site at 

other local community venues. Temple Hill Children’s Centre is near Temple Hill library. The library 

will be used to support families to access services when the Children’s Centre is closed.

This proposal does not a"ect the nursery provision at the Children’s Centre which is not  

delivered by Kent County Council.

• West Kingsdown – West Kingsdown Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of 

children and families need early support services.  West Kingsdown Children’s Centre has the fewest 

number of Centre users of the Children’s Centres in the Swanley area.  The majority of Centre users 

do not attend another Children’s Centre and therefore we propose to reduce hours rather than close 

the Centre.  West Kingsdown Children’s Centre is near West Kingsdown library.  The library will be 

used to support families to access services when the Children’s Centre is closed.

Agenda Item 5

Page 54



1717

Children’s Centres
Agenda Item 5

Page 55



1818

Kent County Council

Maidstone, Sevenoaks, Tonbridge & Malling  

and Tunbridge Wells
What does this mean for Maidstone, Sevenoaks, Tonbridge & Malling and Tunbridge Wells?

District Children’s Centre Plus Linked Children’s Centre Closure

Maidstone Sunshine

Greenfields

The Meadow

Eastborough (currently part-time)

Howard de Walden (currently part-time)

Headcorn (currently part-time) 

(management linked to Cranbrook 

Children’s Centre)

Westborough (management linked to 

Woodlands Children’s Centre)

Loose

Marden

Sevenoaks Sevenoaks Town Centre 

(currently Spring House*)
Edenbridge

Dunton Green

Merry-Go Round 

(Westerham)

Tonbridge & 

Malling
Woodlands

Little Foxes (Long Mead) (management 

linked to Sevenoaks Children’s Centre)

Borough Green (currently part-time) 

(management linked to Sevenoaks 

Children’s Centre)

Burham

Snodland

South Tonbridge (management linked to 

Little Forest Children’s Centre)

Hadlow/East 

Peckham

Larkfield

Tunbridge 

Wells

Little Forest
Southborough / High Brooms

The Ark 

Harmony Pembury

Cranbrook Paddock Wood (currently part-time)

It is proposed that Centres that are currently part-time remain part-time and that Centres shown in 

bold become part time.

* Services currently delivered within these Centres maybe delivered by another organisation. Legally, Kent County Council 

is required to allow other organisations to bid to run these services. This means that the organisation which provides 

services at these Centres may change.  In some cases the services may relocate to a different building, but the building will 

be within the same local area.

 

Information for Swanley is on Page 15.

Agenda Item 5

Page 56



1919

Children’s Centres

Why are we proposing to close these Centres?

• Loose – Loose Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and families need 

early support services. Evidence suggests that the Centre currently signposts a large number of its 

users to other Centres.  The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre. Loose 

Children’s Centre currently opens part time.

• Marden – Marden Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and families 

need early support services. Evidence suggests that the Centre currently signposts a large number 

of its users to other Centres.  The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre. 

Marden Children’s Centre is near Marden Library.  The library will be used to support families to 

access services. Marden Children’s Centre currently operates part time.

• Dunton Green – Dunton Green Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children 

and families need early support services. Evidence suggests that the Centre currently signposts 

a large number of its users to other Centres.  The majority of Centre users also attend another 

Children’s Centre. 

• Merry-Go Round – Merry-Go Round Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of 

children and families need early support services. The majority of Centre users also attend another 

Children’s Centre.  Merry-Go Round Children’s Centre is near Westerham Library.  The library will be 

used to support families to access services.

• Hadlow / East Peckham – Hadlow Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of 

children and families need early support services. The majority of Centre users attend another 

Children’s Centre.  Hadlow Children’s Centre is near Hadlow Library. The library will be used to 

support families to access services. Hadlow Children’s Centre services are currently open part time.

• Lark#eld – Larkfield Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and families 

need early support services. Evidence suggests that the Centre currently signposts a large number 

of its users to other Centres. The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s Centre.  

Larkfield Children’s Centre is near Larkfield Library, which registers births. The library will be used to 

support families to access more services, a number of which are currently run at the library.  Larkfield 

Children’s Centre currently opens part time.

• Pembury - Pembury Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and 

families need early support services.  The majority of Centre users also attend another Children’s 

Centre.  Most services run by Pembury Children’s Centre are delivered off site (and will not be 

affected under this proposal).

Why are we proposing to make these Centres part time?

• Harmony – Harmony Children’s Centre serves an area where smaller numbers of children and 

families need early support services. The majority of users do not attend another Children’s Centre 

and therefore we propose to reduce hours rather than close the Centre. Harmony Children’s Centre 

is near Rusthall Library. The library will be used to support families to access services when the 

Children’s Centre is closed. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 57



2020

Kent County Council
Agenda Item 5

Page 58



2121

Children’s Centres

2121

Shaping the Future of Children’s Centres in Kent:  
Public Consultation Questionnaire

We are committed to keeping you involved and are keen to listen to your views.  

Please let us know what you think by visiting the website at www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres 

and completing the online consultation questionnaire.

Alternatively, you can complete this consultation questionnaire.  Please return it to Freepost  

RTER-RZXC-HCJH Children’s Centres, Facts International, Ashford, TN24 8FL or drop it into any 

Children’s Centre.  

 

Q1 Please tick all that apply 

I am a parent/carer of children aged under 5 

I am a parent/carer of children aged 5-11

I am a parent/carer of children aged 12-18

I will be a parent soon

None of these

  

Q2 How often do you usually use Children’s Centre services in Kent? 

Two or more times a week  

Once a week                       

Once a month

Less often than once a month

Never PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q4

     

 

Q3 Which Children’s Centre(s) do you use most often? (PLEASE WRITE IN)

1

2

3

If you are completing the consultation 
questionnaire in a professional capacity 
(i.e. in connection with your job), please 
complete the online questionnaire at 
www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres. 
Alternatively, a Children’s Centre can 
provide you with a paper version of the 
correct questionnaire.

Agenda Item 5

Page 59



2222

Kent County Council

PROPOSAL 1: REDUCING THE NUMBER OF CHILDREN’S CENTRES

Q4 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the number of 

Children’s Centres (Proposal 1)?  

Strongly agree PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q6

Agree  PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q6

Neither agree nor disagree PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q6

Disagree PLEASE ANSWER Q5

Strongly disagree PLEASE ANSWER Q5

Don’t know PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q6

I do not wish to comment on this proposal PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q8

Q5 If you disagree with the proposal, is it the proposed closure of any particular Centre(s) 

that you object to?  (PLEASE TICK ALL THAT APPLY)

Ashford, Dover and Shepway Canterbury, Swale and Thanet

Cherry Blossom Apple Tree

Squirrel Lodge Briary

The Buttercup Little Bees

The Daisy Swalecliffe

Primrose Tina Rintoul 

New Romney St. Mary’s

The Village Woodgrove

Folkestone Early Years Centre

Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley
Maidstone, Sevenoaks, Tonbridge & Malling and 

Tunbridge Wells

Maypole Loose

Daisy Chains Marden

Little Painters Dunton Green

Merry-Go Round

Hadlow/East Peckham

Larkfield

Pembury

My objections don’t relate to any particular Centre(s)

2222

Agenda Item 5

Page 60



2323

Children’s Centres

2323

Q6 What impact (if any) will the proposed reduction in the number of Children’s  

Centres have on you? (PLEASE TICK ALL THAT APPLY)

          

No impact

I will use Children’s Centre services less often

I will not use Children’s Centres at all

I will attend alternative (non-Children’s Centre) activities 

(e.g. swimming, visiting friends, attending other local groups etc.)

I will attend another Children’s Centre instead

Other (PLEASE WRITE IN)

Don’t know

Q7 Could you tell us why you say that?

Agenda Item 5

Page 61



2424

Kent County Council

PROPOSAL 2: LINKING CHILDREN’S CENTRES TO REDUCE MANAGEMENT AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 

Q8 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce management and 

administrative costs through linking Children’s Centres (Proposal 2)?  

Strongly agree PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q10

Agree  PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q10

Neither agree nor disagree PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q10

Disagree PLEASE ANSWER Q9

Strongly disagree PLEASE ANSWER Q9

Don’t know PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q10

I do not wish to comment on this proposal PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q10

Q9 If you disagree with the proposal to link Centres to reduce management and 

administrative costs, please tell us why.

2424

Agenda Item 5

Page 62



2525

Children’s Centres

2525

PROPOSAL 3: TO REDUCE OPENING HOURS AT SOME CHILDREN’S CENTRES

Q10 To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to reduce the opening hours 

at some Children’s Centres (Proposal 3)?  

Strongly agree PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q12

Agree  PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q12

Neither agree nor disagree PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q12

Disagree PLEASE ANSWER Q11

Strongly disagree PLEASE ANSWER Q11

Don’t know PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q12

I do not wish to comment on this proposal PLEASE GO STRAIGHT TO Q14

Q11 If you disagree with the proposal, is it the proposed reduction of opening hours at any 

particular Centre(s) that you object to? (PLEASE TICK ALL THAT APPLY)

Ashford, Dover and Shepway Canterbury, Swale and Thanet

Samphire Beaches

Dymchurch Lilypad

Hawkinge and Rural Birchington

Hythe Bay Callis Grange

Lydd’le Stars Garlinge

Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley
Maidstone, Sevenoaks, Tonbridge & Malling and 

Tunbridge Wells

Temple Hill Harmony

West Kingsdown

My objections don’t relate to any particular Centre(s)

Agenda Item 5

Page 63



2626

Kent County Council

Q12 What impact (if any) will the proposed reduction in opening hours at some Children’s 

Centres have on you? (PLEASE TICK ALL THAT APPLY)

No impact

I will use Children’s Centre services less often

I will not use Children’s Centres at all

I will attend alternative (non-Children’s Centre) activities 

(e.g. swimming, visiting friends, attending other local groups etc.)

I will attend another Children’s Centre instead

Other (PLEASE WRITE IN)

Don’t know

Q13 Could you tell us why you say that?

2626

Agenda Item 5

Page 64



2727

Children’s Centres

2727

FURTHER COMMENTS 

Q14 Please use this space if you would like to add any further comments about any of the 

proposals for Children’s Centres:

We want to make sure that everyone is treated fairly and equally, and that no one gets left out. 

To help us we are asking you for some information about yourself. This information will only be 

used to help us make decisions about our services and for the purposes of service improvement. 

If you would rather not answer any of these questions, you do not have to.

Q15 How old are you?

Under 20 20-25 26-30 31-35

36-40 41-45 46-50 Over 50

I prefer not to say

Q16 What  is your home postcode?

Q17 Are you?

Male Female I prefer not to say

Q18 Is your Gender the same as it was at birth?

Yes No I prefer not to say

Agenda Item 5

Page 65



2828

Kent County Council

Q19 To which of these ethnic groups do you feel you belong?

White Mixed Asian or Asian British Black or Black British

British White & Black Caribbean Indian Caribbean

Irish White & Black African Pakistani African

Gypsy/Roma White & Asian Bangladeshi Other*

Irish Traveller Other* Other*

Other* Arab Chinese I prefer not to say

*Other Ethnic Group - if your ethnic group is not specified in the list, please describe it here:

Q20 Is English your main language?

Yes No I prefer not to say

Q21 Are your day-to-day activities limited because of a health problem or disability which has 

lasted, or is expected to last, at least 12 months?

Yes, limited a lot Yes, limited a little No I prefer not to say

Q22 What is your religion?

No religion Christian Buddhist Hindu

Jewish Muslim Sikh Any other religion

I prefer not to say

Q23 Which of the following best describes your marital status?

Married/Civil Partnership/Cohabiting

Separated/Divorced/Widowed

Single

I prefer not to say

Q24 Are you…?

Bi/Bisexual Gay woman/Lesbian Other

Heterosexual/Straight Gay man I prefer not to say

2828

Agenda Item 5

Page 66



2929

Children’s Centres

2929

Thank you for providing this information, your feedback is important to us.

We have completed Equality Impact Initial Assessments to see if the proposals could affect anyone 

unfairly. We welcome your views on the assumptions we have made and the conclusions we have 

drawn. To view the documents, please go to www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres or contact us:

Email – cc.consultation@kent.gov.uk

Phone – 0300 333 5540

Post – Freepost RTER-RZXC-HCJH Children’s Centres, Facts International, Ashford, TN24 8FL

Agenda Item 5

Page 67



3030

Kent County Council

Notes

Agenda Item 5

Page 68



3131

Children’s Centres
Agenda Item 5

Page 69



This document is available in alternative formats and languages.  
Please phone 0300 333 5540 or speak to a member of staff at your  

Children’s Centre who can phone on your behalf.
Text Relay: 18001 0300 333 5540

Agenda Item 5

Page 70



C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 -

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

 (
S

e
v

e
n

o
a

k
s)

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 &
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
  

C
e

n
tr

e
 U

sa
g

e

D
u

n
to

n
 G

re
e

n
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
M

e
rr

y
-G

o
-R

o
u

n
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

S
p

ri
n

g
 H

o
u

se
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
N

e
w

 A
sh

 G
re

e
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
2

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

2
2

1
 o

n
ly

 u
s

e
 D

u
n

to
n

 

G
re

e
n

3
0

3
 a

ls
o

 u
s

e
 S

p
ri

n
g

 

H
o

u
s

e
4

5
 a

ls
o

 u
s

e
 M

e
rr

y
-G

o
-

R
o

u
n

d

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.5

D
u

n
to

n
 G

re
e

n

5
4

8
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
..

.

1
7

6
 o

n
ly

 u
s

e
 M

e
rr

y
-

G
o

-R
o

u
n

d

6
2

 a
ls

o
 u

s
e

 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e

1
2

9
 a

ls
o

 u
s

e
 S

p
ri

n
g

 

H
o

u
s

e

4
5

 a
ls

o
 u

s
e

 D
u

n
to

n
 

G
re

e
n

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.5

M
e

rr
y

-G
o

-
R

o
u

n
d

:
3

6
6

 u
se

rs
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
..

.

7
6

1
 o

n
ly

 u
s

e
 S

p
ri

n
g

 

H
o

u
s

e

1
2

9
 a

ls
o

 u
s

e
 M

e
rr

y
-

G
o

-R
o

u
n

d

3
0

3
 a

ls
o

 u
s

e
 D

u
n

to
n

 

G
re

e
n

4
9

 a
ls

o
 u

s
e

 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.5

S
p

ri
n

g
 H

o
u

se

1
2

3
8

 u
se

rs
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
..

.

4
8

9
 o

n
ly

 u
s

e
 

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e

6
2

 a
ls

o
 u

s
e

 M
e

rr
y

-G
o

-

R
o

u
n

d
4

9
 a

ls
o

 u
s

e
 S

p
ri

n
g

 

H
o

u
s

e

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.5

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e

5
9

9
u

s
e

rs
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
..

.

3
0

8
 o

n
ly

 u
s

e
 N

e
w

 A
s

h
 

G
re

e
n

1
5

 a
ls

o
 u

s
e

 G
re

e
n

la
n

d
s

 

a
t 

D
a

re
n

th

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.5

N
e

w
 A

sh
 

G
re

e
n

3
8

6
u

se
rs

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

..
.

Agenda Item 5

Page 71



C
e

n
tr

e
 U

sa
g

e
 -

 C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 &
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
  

S
w

a
n

le
y

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

W
e

st
 K

in
g

sd
o

w
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
2

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

T
e

ch
n

ic
a

l 
N

o
te

s:

B
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 d

a
ta

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 E
st

a
rt

, 
co

v
e

ri
n

g
 1

st
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 t

o
 3

0
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

U
sa

g
e

 b
u

b
b

le
 c

h
a

rt
 s

h
o

w
s 

o
th

e
r 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
u

se
d

. 
 I

n
 m

o
st

 c
a

se
s,

 o
th

e
r 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
u

se
d

 b
y

 >
3

0
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
n

, 
u

p
 t

o
 a

 m
a

xi
m

u
m

 o
f 

7
 o

th
e

r 
ce

n
tr

e
s

T
h

is
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
is

 c
h

il
d

-b
a

se
d

 (
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

a
ch

 c
h

il
d

 o
n

ly
 o

n
ce

 a
g

a
in

st
 e

a
ch

 c
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v

e
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

, 
re

g
a

rd
le

ss
 o

f 
fr

e
q

u
e

n
cy

),
 a

n
d

 c
o

v
e

rs
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
e

s 
fr

o
m

 b
o

th
 w

it
h

in
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 a
re

a

(a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 a

n
o

n
y

m
o

u
s 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
).

4
7

2
 o

n
ly

 u
s

e
 S

w
a

n
le

y

2
7

 a
ls

o
 u

s
e

 W
e

s
t 

K
in

g
s

d
o

w
n

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.5

S
w

a
n

le
y

5
4

0
u

se
rs

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

..
.

1
3

7
 o

n
ly

 u
s

e
 W

e
s

t 

K
in

g
s

d
o

w
n

2
7

 a
ls

o
 u

s
e

 S
w

a
n

le
y

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.5

W
e

st
K

in
g

sd
o

w
n

2
1

3
u

se
rs

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

..
.

Agenda Item 5

Page 72



Li
b

ra
ry

 U
sa

g
e

 A
m

o
n

g
st

  
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
 U

se
rs

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 &
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
  

D
u

n
to

n
 G

re
e

n
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
M

e
rr

y
-G

o
-R

o
u

n
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

Li
b

ra
ry

 U
sa

g
e

 A
m

o
n

g
st

 F
a

m
il

ie
s 

U
si

n
g

 D
u

n
to

n
 G

re
e

n
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
Li

b
ra

ry
 U

sa
g

e
 A

m
o

n
g

st
 F

a
m

il
ie

s 
U

si
n

g
 M

e
rr

y
-G

o
-R

o
u

n
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
N

e
w

 A
sh

 G
re

e
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
2

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

Li
b

ra
ry

 U
sa

g
e

 A
m

o
n

g
st

 F
a

m
il

ie
s 

U
si

n
g

 E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
Li

b
ra

ry
 U

sa
g

e
 A

m
o

n
g

st
 F

a
m

il
ie

s 
U

si
n

g
 N

e
w

 A
sh

 G
re

e
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

S
w

a
n

le
y

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

W
e

st
 K

in
g

sd
o

w
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
2

R
o

u
n

d
: 

R
3

6
4

%

1
9

%

6
%

5
%

5
%

4
%

N
o

n
-u

se
rs

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s 
L

ib
ra

ry

K
e

m
si

n
g

 L
ib

ra
ry

O
tf

o
rd

 L
ib

ra
ry

R
iv

e
rh

e
a

d
 L

ib
ra

ry

O
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s

7
4

%

1
2

%

9
%

3
%

2
%

1
%

N
o

n
-u

se
rs

W
e

st
e

rh
a

m
 L

ib
ra

ry

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s 
L

ib
ra

ry

R
iv

e
rh

e
a

d
 L

ib
ra

ry

O
tf

o
rd

 L
ib

ra
ry

O
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s

8
3

%

1
4

%

2
%

1
%

1
%

1
%

N
o

n
-u

se
rs

E
d

e
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 L

ib
ra

ry

W
e

st
e

rh
a

m
 L

ib
ra

ry

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s 
L

ib
ra

ry

L
a

rk
fi

e
ld

 L
ib

ra
ry

O
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s

4
1

% 4
5

%

7
%

2
%

1
%

1
%

N
o

n
-u

se
rs

N
e

w
 A

sh
 G

re
e

n
 L

ib
ra

ry

H
a

rt
le

y
 L

ib
ra

ry

L
o

n
g

fi
e

ld
 L

ib
ra

ry

M
e

o
p

h
a

m
 L

ib
ra

ry

W
e

st
 K

in
g

sd
o

w
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

Agenda Item 5

Page 73



Li
b

ra
ry

 U
sa

g
e

 A
m

o
n

g
st

 F
a

m
il

ie
s 

U
si

n
g

 S
w

a
n

le
y

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

Li
b

ra
ry

 U
sa

g
e

 A
m

o
n

g
st

 F
a

m
il

ie
s 

U
si

n
g

 W
e

st
 K

in
g

sd
o

w
n

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e

Li
b

ra
ry

 d
a

ta
 r

e
la

te
s 

to
 u

se
rs

 e
it

h
e

r 
b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 o
r 

re
n

e
w

in
g

 a
n

 i
te

m
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 c

e
n

tr
e

 d
a

ta
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 a

ct
iv

it
y

 d
a

ta
 t

a
k

e
n

 f
ro

m
 E

st
a

rt
, 

co
v

e
ri

n
g

 1
st

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 t
o

 3
0

th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2

A
n

a
ly

si
s 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 l

is
t 

o
f 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

5
9

%

3
7

%

1
%

1
%

0
% 1
%

N
o

n
-u

se
rs

S
w

a
n

le
y

 L
ib

ra
ry

W
e

st
 K

in
g

sd
o

w
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s 
L

ib
ra

ry

S
u

m
m

e
rh

o
u

se
 L

ib
ra

ry

O
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s

8
1

%

1
0

%

2
%

2
%

2
% 4

%

N
o

n
-u

se
rs

W
e

st
 K

in
g

sd
o

w
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

D
a

rt
fo

rd
 L

ib
ra

ry

S
u

tt
o

n
-a

t-
H

o
n

e
 L

ib
ra

ry

S
w

a
n

le
y

 L
ib

ra
ry

O
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s

Agenda Item 5

Page 74



U
sa

g
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 &
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
  

D
u

n
to

n
 

G
re

e
n

M
e

rr
y

-G
o

-

R
o

u
n

d

S
p

ri
n

g
 

H
o

u
se

E
d

e
n

- 

b
ri

d
g

e

N
e

w
 A

sh
 

G
re

e
n

S
w

a
n

le
y

W
e

st
 

K
in

g
sd

o
w

n

K
e

n
t 

A
v

e
ra

g
e

T
o

ta
l 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ch
il

d
re

n
 s

e
e

n
 (

re
a

ch
)

5
4

8
3

6
6

1
2

3
8

5
9

9
3

8
6

5
4

0
2

1
3

6
1

5

4
0

%
4

8
%

6
1

%
8

2
%

8
0

%
8

7
%

6
4

%
4

9
%

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
ce

 f
re

q
u

e
n

cy

Ju
st

 o
n

ce
4

4
%

4
7

%
3

5
%

2
7

%
2

0
%

3
4

%
3

4
%

3
5

%

Le
ss

 t
h

a
n

 o
n

ce
 a

 m
o

n
th

 (
2

-1
1

 t
im

e
s)

4
5

%
4

1
%

5
3

%
4

6
%

5
7

%
4

9
%

5
0

%
4

7
%

1
-2

 t
im

e
s 

a
 m

o
n

th
 (

1
2

-2
4

 t
im

e
s)

9
%

1
1

%
9

%
1

8
%

1
6

%
1

1
%

9
%

1
0

%

A
t 

le
a

st
 f

o
rt

n
ig

h
tl

y
 (

2
5

-4
9

 t
im

e
s)

2
%

2
%

2
%

6
%

7
%

5
%

7
%

6
%

A
t 

le
a

st
 w

e
e

k
ly

 (
5

0
+

 t
im

e
s)

0
%

0
%

0
%

2
%

1
%

1
%

0
%

2
%

F
re

q
u

e
n

t 
u

se
rs

1
7

%
1

6
%

2
0

%
3

3
%

3
2

%
2

7
%

2
6

%
2

4
%

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 v
is

it
s 

p
e

r 
ch

il
d

4
.7

4
.6

5
.1

9
.2

8
.5

6
.9

6
.6

8
.3

A
g

e
 (

a
t 

1
st

 O
ct

 2
0

1
2

)

U
n

d
e

r 
1

2
4

%
2

0
%

2
9

%
2

4
%

2
2

%
3

0
%

2
9

%
2

1
%

1
3

3
%

2
8

%
3

0
%

2
5

%
2

5
%

3
3

%
2

7
%

2
6

%

2
2

6
%

2
8

%
2

3
%

2
3

%
2

4
%

1
5

%
2

3
%

2
1

%

3
7

%
1

1
%

9
%

1
2

%
1

6
%

1
2

%
1

0
%

1
6

%

4
8

%
9

%
6

%
1

1
%

1
2

%
7

%
8

%
1

1
%

5
2

%
4

%
3

%
5

%
1

%
3

%
2

%
4

%

C
a

tc
h

m
e

n
t 

A
n

a
ly

si
s

N
e

e
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
- 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 v
o

lu
m

e
 (

N
u

m
b

e
rs

)
Lo

w
Lo

w
A

v
e

ra
g

e
A

v
e

ra
g

e
A

v
e

ra
g

e
A

v
e

ra
g

e
Lo

w

N
e

e
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
- 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 p
e

n
e

tr
a

ti
o

n
 (

%
)

Lo
w

A
v

e
ra

g
e

Lo
w

A
v

e
ra

g
e

Lo
w

A
v

e
ra

g
e

Lo
w

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
0

-5
s 

(p
ro

vi
si

o
n

a
l)

D
o

w
n

D
o

w
n

D
o

w
n

D
o

w
n

D
o

w
n

D
o

w
n

D
o

w
n

S
im

il
a

r

T
e

ch
n

ic
a

l 
N

o
te

s:

U
sa

g
e

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
n

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 d

a
ta

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 E
st

a
rt

, 
co

v
e

ri
n

g
 1

st
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 t

o
 3

0
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

F
re

q
u

e
n

t 
u

se
rs

: 
A

re
 d

e
fi

n
e

d
 a

s 
ch

il
d

re
n

 r
e

co
rd

e
d

 a
s 

h
a

v
in

g
 u

se
d

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 1
2

+
 t

im
e

s 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r,
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
d

ju
st

m
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

1
's

C
a

tc
h

m
e

n
ts

: 
N

e
e

d
s 

a
re

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 (

w
it

h
 0

-1
1

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s)
 l

iv
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 '

a
ct

u
a

l/
n

a
tu

ra
l'

 c
a

tc
h

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

e
a

ch
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
 I

n
 t

h
is

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

ca
tc

h
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 b

u
il

t 
a

t 
LS

O
A

-l
e

v
e

l,
 w

it
h

e
a

ch
 L

S
O

A
 i

n
 K

e
n

t 
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
 t

o
 a

 c
e

n
tr

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

th
e

 m
o

st
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
u

se
rs

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

a
t 

LS
O

A
 a

re
a

.

N
e

e
d

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s:

 L
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
n

e
e

d
 a

re
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 b
o

th
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

n
e

e
d

 (
i.

e
. 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

ch
il

d
re

n
/h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
o

f 
a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
1

1
 n

e
e

d
 t

y
p

e
s)

 a
n

d
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

e
tr

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 (
i.

e
. 

th
e

 %
 o

f

ch
il

d
re

n
/h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
o

f 
e

a
ch

 o
f 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

1
1

 n
e

e
d

 t
y

p
e

s)

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n

s:
 B

a
se

d
 o

n
 W

a
rd

-l
e

v
e

l 
p

ro
je

ct
io

n
s 

fo
r 

2
0

2
6

, 
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 b

y
 R

e
se

a
rc

h
 &

 I
n

te
ll

ig
e

n
ce

, 
K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

G
re

e
n

 f
o

n
t 

in
d

ic
a

te
s 

th
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 i

s 
u

p
p

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

il
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

R
e

d
 f

o
n

t 
in

d
ic

a
te

s 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 i
s 

lo
w

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

il
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

%
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 w
h

o
 o

n
ly

 w
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
is

 C
e

n
tr

e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

p
e

ri
o

d

Agenda Item 5

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Some Key Facts 

Kent Children's 

Centre Consultation

4th July 2013 – 4th October 2013

Strategic Commissioning (Children’s)

24.07.13 
K:\CFE Commissioning Unit\6 Children's Centres\1. Make Buy Sell Review\1. 

Communication Consultation and Engagement\DCCMs\DCCM Pack

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 77



Consultation principles

• Protect services (not buildings) which improve health, education 
and social care

• Deliver savings of at least £1.5million

• Continue to offer parents and expectant parents a choice about 
which Centre they use

• Ensure we give support to those children and families who need 
it most

• Improve co-ordination and access to a range of service for 
families with children aged 0-11 where a least one child in the 
family is under 5 years old (new model of delivery using 
Children's Centre Plus.)

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 78



How are we proposing to do this?

• To reduce the number of Children’s Centres

• Linking Children’s Centres to reduce management 

and administrative costs

• Reduce hours at some Children’s Centres

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 79



Why close my Centre or reduce it’s 

hours?
These Centres may have;

• Smaller numbers of children and families needing early support; and/or

• Another “essential community resource” that is able to signpost to 
Children’s Centre services nearby; and/or 

• The majority of users attending another Children’s Centres; and/or 

• Been identified locally with support from local Managers and local 
engagement workshops.

What else has been considered?

• Equality Impact Assessments, 

• Access to Centres by transport (driving and public transport)

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 80



Why do some Districts have more 

proposed Centre closures than others?

• There are differences across Kent.  Services need 

to reflect the communities that they serve.

• We want to ensure that we give support to those 

children and families who need it most. (Based on 

need). A
genda Item

 5

P
age 81



Some key points

• The closure of a Children’s Centre does not mean 
the closure of an on site nursery. 

• Parents will still be able to access Children’s 
Centre services in other Centres and we will 
continue to bring services to you (in community 
venues), where they are needed.

• Decisions about the use of spare accommodation 
as a result of any closures will be made after the 
consultation process.

• A separate consultation would happen before any 
staffing changes are made.

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 82



Travel distances

Based on the proposal the following access 
figures have been calculated:

• Drive times:
• 99% of 0-4 year old KCC population are within a 15 minute 

drive time of a Centre

• Public Transport:
• 97% of 0-4 year old KCC population are within 90 minute of a 

Centre by public transport 

• 78% of 0-4 year old KCC population are within 20 minute of a 
Centre by public transport 

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 83



Children’s Centre Plus

• Located in communities where larger numbers of 

children and families need early support services

• Generally bigger buildings

• Will lead co-ordination of services across a 

network of linked centres

• May deliver more support than they do now

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 84



Why Clinical Commissioning Groups?

• We have modelled the future shape of Children’s Centres in Kent 
around the 7 Clinical Commissioning Group boundaries to align 
Children’s Centre with recent changes to the Health System.

• Key Partner - Children’s Centres are key to the delivering the 
Healthy Child Programme in Kent. Children’s Centres have to 
improve child and family health and life chances by law.

• Greater opportunity for joint working and integration to improve 
outcomes for children and families effectively and efficiently.

• Improved joint commissioning giving better value for money.

• Public Health now part of KCC and Health Visitors join in 2015.

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 85



What happens next?

• Closes 4th October 

• October - thorough analysis of results

• December - a decision taken by County Council

• December – notification of decision and feed back 

available at www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 86



Contacts

• www.kent.gov.uk/childrenscentres

• cc.consultation@kent.gov.uk

• Tel: 0300 333 5540

• Freepost RTER-RZXC-HCJC

Children's Centres

Facts International

Ashford

TN24 8FL

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 87



P
age 88

T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

Health Liaison Board Work Plan 2013/14 

11 September 2013 9 January 2014 or 27 

January 2014 

27 March 2014  

Dementia 

Children Trust Services 

Mind The Gap – District 

Level Health inequalities 

plan 

Autism and Asperger 

Syndrome  

111 – Health telephone 

service 

Annual report 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Dates in italic are provisional  

A
genda Item

 9

P
age 89



P
age 90

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Action from the last meeting of the Board
	4 Updates from Members
	5 Children Centres Consultation
	4. District Summary - Sevenoaks
	4. Powerpoint

	9 Work Plan

